Public Document Pack

Notice of Meeting

Western Area Planning

Committee

Wednesday 15 March 2017 at 6.30pm

in the Council Chamber Council Offices
Market Street Newbury

Members Interests

Note: If you consider you may have an interest in any Planning Application included on
this agenda then please seek early advice from the appropriate officers.

Date of despatch of Agenda: Tuesday 7 March 2017

FURTHER INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

Plans relating to the Planning Applications to be considered at the meeting can be viewed in the
Council Chamber, Market Street, Newbury between 5.30pm and 6.30pm on the day of the
meeting.

No new information may be produced to Committee on the night (this does not prevent
applicants or objectors raising new points verbally). If objectors or applicants wish to introduce
new additional material they must provide such material to planning officers at least 5 clear
working days before the meeting (in line with the Local Authorities (Access to Meetings and
Documents) (Period of Notice) (England) Order 2002).

For further information about this Agenda, or to inspect any background documents
referred to in Part | reports, please contact the Planning Team on (01635) 519148
Email: planapps@westberks.gov.uk

Further information, Planning Applications and Minutes are also available on the
Council’'s website at www.westberks.gov.uk

Any queries relating to the Committee should be directed to Jo Reeves on (01635)
519486 Email: joanna.reeves@westberks.gov.uk

WestBerkshire



mailto:planapps@westberks.gov.uk
http://www.westberks.gov.uk/

Agenda - Western Area Planning Committee to be held on Wednesday, 15 March 2017

To:

(continued)

Councillors Howard Bairstow, Jeff Beck, Dennis Benneyworth, Paul Bryant
(Vice-Chairman), Hilary Cole, Billy Drummond, Adrian Edwards, Paul Hewer,
Clive Hooker (Chairman), Anthony Pick, Garth Simpson and
Virginia von Celsing

Substitutes: Councillors Jeanette Clifford, James Cole, James Fredrickson and

Mike Johnston

Agenda

Part | Page No.

1.

(1)

Apologies
To receive apologies for inability to attend the meeting (if any).

Minutes 5-16
To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of this
Committee held on 22 February 2017.

Declarations of Interest

To remind Members of the need to record the existence and nature of any
personal, disclosable pecuniary or other registrable interests in items on
the agenda, in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct.

Schedule of Planning Applications

(Note: The Chairman, with the consent of the Committee, reserves the right
to alter the order of business on this agenda based on public interest and
participation in individual applications).

Application No. and Parish: 16/02529/0UTD - Land Adjacent To 17 - 42
Summerfield, The Ridge, Cold Ash
Proposal: Outline application for change of use of part of existing
agricultural field to residential and the erection of 5 no.
detached dwelling houses with ancillary garages, access,
parking, landscaping and associated works. Matters to
be considered - Access and Layout.

Location: Land Adjacent To Summerfield, The Ridge, Cold Ash
Applicant: The Trustee Of F W New Deceased
Recommendation: The Head of Planning and Countryside be authorised

to APPROVE the application as submitted.

¥ WestBerkshire



http://info.westberks.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=38477&p=0

Agenda - Western Area Planning Committee to be held on Wednesday, 15 March 2017

(continued)

Background Papers

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)

The West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026.

The West Berkshire District Local Plan (Saved Policies September 2007), the
Replacement Minerals Local Plan for Berkshire, the Waste Local Plan for Berkshire and
relevant Supplementary Planning Guidance and Documents.

Any previous planning applications for the site, together with correspondence and
report(s) on those applications.

The case file for the current application comprising plans, application forms,
correspondence and case officer’s notes.

The Human Rights Act.

Andy Day
Head of Strategic Support

If you require this information in a different format or translation, please contact

Moira Fraser on telephone (01635) 519045.

¥ WestBerkshire




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 2.
DRAFT

Note: These Minutes will remain DRAFT until approved at the next meeting of the Committee

WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON
WEDNESDAY, 22 FEBRUARY 2017

Councillors Present: Howard Bairstow, Jeff Beck, Dennis Benneyworth, Paul Bryant (Vice-
Chairman), Hilary Cole, Billy Drummond, Adrian Edwards, Paul Hewer, Clive Hooker
(Chairman), Anthony Pick, Garth Simpson and Virginia von Celsing

Also Present: Michael Butler (Principal Planning Officer), Derek Carnegie (Team Leader -
Development Control), Rachel Craggs (Principal Policy Officer (Equalities)), Gareth Dowding
(Senior Engineer (Developers Scheme)) and Shiraz Sheikh (Principal Solicitor)

PART I

45. Minutes

The Minutes of the meeting held on 18 January were approved as a true and correct
record and signed by the Chairman, subject to the following amendment:

Item 43, page 11, 39t point, 3" line: change ‘In addition the obligations required for
ecological enhancement and monitoring of the open space in perpetuity, for the newt
population and the following conditions:” to ‘In addition the obligations required for
ecological enhancement for the newt population and monitoring of the open space in
perpetuity and the following conditions:’

46. Declarations of Interest

Councillors Jeff Beck, Adrian Edwards and Anthony Pick declared an interest in Agenda
Item 4(1) but reported that as their interest was personal and not an other registrable or a
disclosable pecuniary interest, they determined to remain to take part in the debate and
vote on the matter.

Councillor Pick declared that he had been lobbied with regard to Agenda ltem 4(2).
47. Schedule of Planning Applications

48. Application No. and Parish: 16/03469/FULD - 3-5 Porchester Road,
Newbury

(Councillors Jeff Beck, Adrian Edwards and Anthony Pick declared an interest in Agenda
Item 4(1) by virtue of the fact that they were Members of Newbury Town Council (NTC),
but would consider the application afresh. As their interest was a personal and not an
other registrable interest or disclosable pecuniary interest, they determined to remain to
take part in the debate and vote on the matter.)

1. The Committee considered a report (Agenda Item 4(1)) concerning Planning
Application 16/03469/FULD in respect of the erection of a third floor at 3-5
Porchester Road, Newbury to provide four 1 bed flats with associated parking and
amenity space.

2. In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, Ms Sonya Green, objector, Mr Nick
Cobbold, agent and Councillor Anthony Pick, Ward Member, addressed the
Committee on this application.

Page 5



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 22 FEBRUARY 2017 - MINUTES

3.

Michael Butler introduced the report to Members, which took account of all the
relevant policy and other material considerations. It had been brought to Committee
as more than 10 objections had been received and officers were recommending
approval. Mr Butler noted that the building was not listed and the area was outside
the local conservation area. However the Conservation Officer had commented that
he preferred the original symmetry of the first scheme, although the current scheme
still remained acceptable in overall design terms. Michael Butler also drew the
Committee’s attention to point 5.3 of the report, which referred to the inclusion of a
pair of Juliette balconies. The plans were not completely clear and the agent had
since confirmed that there would be no Juliette balconies on the southern elevation;
however the rear fire escapes would remain.

The Update Report recommended the inclusion of an additional condition for the
inclusion of a sprinkler system on the top floor to control/prevent fire. This would
negate the need for the additional external fire escape to the top floor and so prevent
overlooking.

In conclusion, the report stated that the proposal was acceptable and conditional
approval was justifiable. Therefore, officers recommended the Committee grant
planning permission subject to the additional conditions.

Councillor Paul Bryant noted that Michael Butler had referred to the shadowing being
as a result of the solstice, whereas it was in fact the winter equinox. He went on to
query whether the sprinkler system would apply to all three floors. Michael Butler
responded that it would only be the top floor, although Members could ask the
applicant’s agent to include a sprinkler system on the other floors. Councillor Bryant
further asked for confirmation that the fire escapes would be retained on the first and
second floors, which Michael Butler affirmed.

Councillor Adrian Edwards enquired where the large water tank for the sprinkler
system would be located. Michael Butler replied that this was a building regulation
matter and if an external water tank was required, it would be included as a non-
material amendment, negating the need for a new planning application.

Councillor Anthony Pick asked if consideration had been given to the overlooking of
gardens from the fourth floor. Michael Butler confirmed that it had been considered
and, as a result, the inclusion of a condition requiring obscured glazing had been
contemplated, but as these were kitchen windows, the planners had not thought it
was necessary. However, Members might have a different view.

Ms Sonya Green attempted to address the Committee but her voice was seriously
impaired by a cold. It was, therefore, proposed by Councillor Jeff Beck and
seconded by Councillor Howard Bairstow that her companion should do so on her
behalf. As a result, Mr Sean Coughlan raised the following points:

e The strongest objection concerned the asymmetric nature of the roof line, which
had been offered by the Planning Officer as a ‘better’ scheme on the grounds that
it would comply with the towers of 1 and 2 Porchester Road. This was a strange
comparison as these buildings predated 2-4 and 3-5 Porchester Road by a
decade or so.

e |f 3-5 Porchester Road were similar to 4-6, then the attic floor was not load bearing
and nor was it one level as the front of the house was some two feet lower than
the rear with a brick ‘wall’ holding the higher section in place. Therefore, the rear
of number 5 would offer a much lower ceiling than the front of number 3.

Page 6



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 22 FEBRUARY 2017 - MINUTES

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

e Newbury Town Council had stated that the amended plans would harm the
character of the area; the Conservation Officer preferred the original symmetry;
the current site comprised attractive Victorian villas that added character to the
area. Despite all this, the design was claimed on balance to be acceptable with
the asymmetry fitting’ with the other buildings, although it was of a very different
style.

e |If the planning application was granted, he requested that the parking area was
completed before occupancy and space was given to the construction vehicles.

Councillor Bairstow enquired whether a discussion had been held with the architect
about the difference in height and Mr Coughlan confirmed that it had not.

Mr Nick Cobbold in addressing the Committee raised the following points:

e |t was two years since they had first approached the Council for pre-application
advice.

e None of the current lease holders had objected to the scheme as they could see
the benefits to their amenity.

e The roof needed replacing so it was a logical time to carry out the work.

e He had not previously had sight of the Council’s analysis in relation to loss of light,
but it showed that the impact of the development would be minimal.

e The Applicant had used the Building Research Establishment (BRE) guidance in
order to assess the loss of light and considered that a 45° angle was acceptable.
He had looked at the distances and the angle from the middle of the windows to
the top of the proposed developed was 40° which was 5° less than the BRE
guidance.

e With regard to overlooking of neighbouring properties, there was already a degree
of overlooking from the existing building so this would not have a great impact.

e The original application had included a consistent roof line but had been changed
following advice from the planners. However design was subjective and there was
no right or wrong answer. There was a mixture of flats and buildings of differing
heights in the area so the character of the neighbourhood had already changed
over time.

e Parking would be provided in accordance with the Council’s standards.

e There were ten flats on the site already so this would not be a new development
and the current impact had to be taken into account.

Councillor Virginia von Celsing asked what the benefits would be to the current lease
holders. Mr Cobbold replied that 9 of the 10 units had been flooded recently and a
new roof was required, so it would mean they would not have the financial burden of
this.

Councillor Bryant enquired how the sprinkler system would be fitted and if it would be
viable. Mr Cobbold responded that this had only been raised the previous day and
so he had been unable to consider the detail. However the options were to either
have a water tank or connect each unit to the mains water supply, which might be the
easier solution.

Councillor Bairstow pointed out that the drawings were incorrect as they showed
three chimneys, but there should be two more on the rear elevation. Mr Cobbold
conceded that he might be correct.

Page 7



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 22 FEBRUARY 2017 - MINUTES

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

Councillor Bairstow further enquired about the difference between the two floors and
how it changed the accommodation. Mr Cobbold explained that one of the flats in
the roof would have a pitched roof and the other a flat roof.

Councillor Pick asked if all the top floor flats would be in the roof space and Mr
Cobbold replied that only two of them would be.

Councillor Clive Hooker noted that the renovation and alteration provided a good
opportunity to tidy up the exterior of the building. However he asked Michael Butler
whether applying sprinklers to the first two floors would negate the need for the fire
escapes. Michael Butler responded that it would, but in his view, such a condition
would be unreasonable.

Councillor Pick in addressing the Committee raised the following points:
e The property was a fine Victorian building.

e Opposite were semi detached buildings which were identical except for an
extension on the ground floor.

e He differed from Michael Butler's acceptance of the application, as he believed
that the integrity of these buildings should be respected and he felt they made a
substantial contribution to the area which would be impacted by the additional
floor.

e The overlooking from the fourth floor would have a greater impact than the current
overlooking from the third floor.

e The flats located in the roof would be cramped.
e The building would contravene pages 48—49 of the Newbury Plan Statement.

e The building was a heritage asset even though it was not listed as there were few
buildings in Newbury of a similar nature.

Councillor Bryant asked if he was objecting to the addition of the fourth floor or the
asymmetry of the design to which Councillor Pick replied he objected to the addition
of the fourth floor.

Councillor von Celsing asked what the rationale was for the uneven roof. Michael
Butler replied that he had taken account of the villas on the other side of the road and
the towers. He had also discussed it with other officers and they had considered that
the varied roofline would create more visual interest in a similar way to 1 Porchester
Road. If the Conservation Officer had objected to the design, they would have
suggested it was revised but he had found it was acceptable. Design was subjective
and it was a highly sustainable area with massive demand for additional housing.
Therefore, although there would be some harm, it was not sufficient to refuse the
application and he could not envisage a planning inspector dismissing the application
if it went to appeal.

The Committee debated the points raised and Councillor Bryant stated that he had a
difficulty with the aesthetics of the design and the legality of the proposal. He further
added that the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) stated committees
should only accept planning applications for extensions that were of a high quality
design and yet many that came to the committee were not. He did not like the
asymmetry of the design but there was little reason to object to the merits of the
proposal as it was outside the conservation area and it would be approved by a
planning inspector at appeal. Therefore, with great reluctance, Councillor Bryant
proposed acceptance of the planning application. This was seconded by Councillor

Page 8



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 22 FEBRUARY 2017 - MINUTES

22.

23.

24,

Beck who added that he thought the asymmetry helped the development to blend in
with the neighbourhood and he considered it would be an improvement.

Councillor Hooker invited the Committee to vote on the proposal of Councillor Bryant,
as seconded by Councillor Beck to accept Officers’ recommendation. At the vote this
was carried.

RESOLVED that the Head of Planning and Countryside be authorised to grant
planning permission subject to the following conditions:

Conditions

1.

The development shall be started within three years from the date of this
permission and implemented strictly in accordance with the approved plans.

Reason: To enable the Local Planning Authority to review the desirability of the
development against the advice in the DMPO of 2015 should it not be started
within a reasonable time.

The development must be carried out in strict accord with the following plans as
received on 10 January 2017 - plan number 2760-02b rev B, [proposed plans
and proposed elevations] plus site plan and survey plan number 2760-01.
Location plan received on 8 December 2016.

Reason: To clarify the permission in accord with the advice in the DMPO of 2015.
The development shall be completed as one whole phase.

Reason: To ensure there is no unacceptable visual imbalance in the north
elevation of the proposed development which would otherwise be harmful to the
street scene and setting of the adjacent conservation area, so being contrary to
policy CS19 in the West Berkshire Core Strategy of 2006 to 2026.

No new dwelling shall be occupied until the vehicle parking and/or turning space
have been provided in accordance with the approved plan(s). The parking
and/or turning space shall thereafter be kept available for parking (of private
motor cars and/or light goods vehicles) at all times.

Reason: To ensure the development is provided with adequate parking facilities,
in order to reduce the likelihood of roadside parking that would adversely affect
road safety and the flow of traffic. This condition is imposed in accordance with
the National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012), Policy CS13 of the West
Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026) and Policy TRANS1 of the West Berkshire
District Local Plan 1991-2006 (Saved Policies 2007).

No new dwelling shall be occupied until the cycle parking has been provided in
accordance with the approved drawings and this area shall thereafter be kept
available for the parking of cycles at all times.

Reason: To ensure the development reduces reliance on private motor vehicles
and assists with the parking, storage and security of cycles. This condition is
imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (March
2012), Policy CS13 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026) and Policy
TRANS1 of the West Berkshire District Local Plan 1991-2006 (Saved Policies

Page 9



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 22 FEBRUARY 2017 - MINUTES

2007).

No development shall take place until details of a contractors temporary parking
and turning area to be provided and maintained concurrently with the
development of the site have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The approved parking and turning area shall be
provided at the commencement of development and thereafter maintained in
accordance with the approved details until the development has been completed.
During this time, the approved parking and turning area shall be kept available
for parking and used by employees, contractors, operatives and other visitors
during all periods that they are working at or visiting the site.

Reason: To ensure that the development is provided with adequate parking and
turning facilities during the construction period. This condition is imposed in
order to minimise the incidences of off-site parking in the locality which could
cause danger to other road users, and long terms inconvenience to local
residents. This condition is imposed in accordance with the National Planning
Policy Framework (March 2012) and Policy CS13 of the West Berkshire Core
Strategy (2006-2026).

The materials to be used in the development shall match those on the existing
development to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. This shall relate
to the slate roof and the existing facing render.

Reason: In the interests of amenity in accordance with Policy CS19 of the West
Berkshire Core Strategy of 2006 to 2026.

The hours of work for all contractors (and sub-contractors) for the duration of the
site development shall, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority, be limited to; 7.30 am to 6.00 pm on Mondays to Fridays, 8.00 am to
1.00 pm on Saturdays, and NO work shall be carried out on Sundays or Bank
Holidays.

Reason: In order to protect the amenities of surrounding residents in accordance
with the advice in the NPPF of 2012.

Prior to the first occupation of the flats as permitted on the new top floor, a
sprinkler system (or alternative mist system) shall be inserted in order to prevent
fire.

Reason: In the interests of public safety in accord with the NPPF.

The decision to grant This decision has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the National Planning Policy Framework, South East Plan
Regional Spatial Strategy for the south east of England 2009 West Berkshire
District Local Plan 1991-2006 (WBDLP) Saved Policies 2007, the Waste Local
Plan for Berkshire, adopted 1998, the Replacement Minerals Local Plan for
Berkshire 1991-2006 (incorporating the alterations adopted in December 1997
and May 2001) and to all other relevant material considerations, including
Government guidance, supplementary planning guidance notes; and in particular
guidance notes and policies:

Page 10



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 22 FEBRUARY 2017 - MINUTES

The reasoning above is only intended as a summary. If you require further
information on this decision please contact the Council via the Customer Call
Centre on 01635 519111.

INFORMATIVE:

1. The applicant’s attention is drawn to the fact that above conditions must be
complied with in full before any work commences on site, failure to do so may
result in enforcement action being instigated.

2. The above Permission may contain pre-conditions, which require specific matters
to be approved by the Local Planning Authority before a specified stage in the
development occurs. For example, “Prior to commencement of development
written details of the means of enclosure will be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority”. This means that a lawful
commencement of the approved development cannot be made until the particular
requirements of the pre-condition(s) have been met. A fee is required for an
application to discharge conditions.

3 This decision has been made in a positive way to foster the delivery of
sustainable development having regard to Development Plan policies and
available guidance to secure high quality appropriate development. In this
application whilst there has been a need to balance conflicting considerations,
the local planning authority has worked proactively with the applicant to secure
and accept what is considered to be a development which improves the
economic, social and environmental conditions of the area.

4 The development hereby approved results in a requirement to make payments to
the Council as part of the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) procedure. A
Liability Notice setting out further details, and including the amount of CIL
payable will be sent out separately from this Decision Notice. You are advised to
read the Liability Notice and ensure that a Commencement Notice is submitted to
the authority prior to the commencement of the development. Failure to submit
the Commencement Notice will result in the loss of any exemptions claimed, and
the loss of any right to pay by instalments, and additional costs to you in the form
of surcharges. For further details see the website at www.westberks.gov.uk/cil

Application No. and Parish: 15/03196/COMIND - Land off Tull Way,
Thatcham

(Councillor Pick declared that he had been lobbied on Agenda Item 4(2).)

1. The Committee considered a report (Agenda Item 4(2)) concerning Planning
Application 15/03196/COMIND in respect of a flood alleviation scheme at land off Tull
Way, Thatcham.

2. In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, Councillor Richard Crumly, adjoining
Parish Council representative, and Councillor Garth Simpson, Ward Member,
addressed the Committee on this application.

3. Derek Carnegie introduced the report to Members, which took account of all the
relevant policy and other material considerations. It had been brought to Committee
as it was a major application that had been submitted by West Berkshire Council.
The area had been flooded in 2007 and the application was a resubmission of a
previous permission with some amendments. These related to a proposed access

Page 11



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 22 FEBRUARY 2017 - MINUTES

10.

11.

12.

13.

via a field to the north, parking for inspection vehicles after construction and a
change to the materials for the headwall and wingwall within the bund.

The Update Report referred to the fact that the appellant wished to provide sheep
netting and had therefore provided amended plans on the location and type of
badger gate.

In conclusion, the report stated that the proposal was acceptable and conditional
approval was justifiable. Therefore, officers recommended that the Committee grant
planning permission subject to the inclusion of the additional conditions.

Councillor Howard Bairstow asked if sheep would be able to climb up the slope to
which Derek Carnegie responded that he was unable to provide a clear answer and
would refer this to the appropriate officer.

Councillor Garth Simpson referred to a condition relating to a requirement for
wildflower grass planting and he questioned why this was required. Derek Carnegie
advised that he would clarify this with the case officer.

Councillor Richard Crumly in addressing the Committee raised the following points:

e Thatcham Town Council would benefit from the bund and gave its support to this
application and the original one.

e Florence Gardens had been flooded in 2007 and again in 2008.

Councillor Garth Simpson in addressing the Committee raised the following points:
e The amendment to the original allocation would provide improved access.

e The public benefit was clear and most welcome.

e The bund would be a large structure and visible to car users and some residents.

e The landscaping would do much to soften the impact of the structure and he had
no hesitation in recommending approval of the planning application.

After considering the above application Councillor Anthony Pick proposed
acceptance of the proposal which was seconded by Councillor Jeff Beck.

Councillor Hooker invited the Committee to vote on the proposal of Councillor Pick,
as seconded by Councillor Beck to accept Officers’ recommendation. At the vote this
was carried.

RESOLVED that the Head of Planning and Countryside be authorised to grant
planning permission subject to the following conditions:

Conditions:

Time Limit

1. The development shall be started within three years from the date of this

permission and implemented strictly in accordance with the approved plans.

Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 (as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act
2004); to enable the Local Planning Authority to review the desirability of the
development should it not be started within a reasonable time.

Plans

Page 12



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 22 FEBRUARY 2017 - MINUTES

2.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with
drawing numbers:

3189-GA-100 Rev H, 3189-GA-01 Rev H and 81561-LD51-004 received on 17
February 2016;3189-SD-101 Rev G received on 20 January 2017,
WBC/118/8K1/Rev E received on 11 July 2016;3189-ATR-01 Rev F, 3189-ATR-
02 Rev E, 3189-ATR-03 Rev E, 3189-ATR-04 Rev E, 3189-GA-02 Rev F, 3189-
GA-03 Rev E, 3189-RP-100 Rev E, 3189-RP-101 Rev E, 3189-RP-102 Rev D,
3189-SD-100 Rev D, 3189-SD-102 Rev D received on 28 August 2016; 3189-
RP-01 Rev G and 3189-RP-02 Rev B received on 2 December 2015;
Geotechnical Interpretative Report by Geo Environmental Services received on
20 November 2015;

Geotechnical Lab Test Results Summary, documents GE10924-App6-1,
GE10924 EWKSPEC and email received on 19 April 2016;

Cotswold Archaeology project ref 77022 received on 22 February 2016.

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the
submitted details assessed against Policies ADPP1, ADPP2, ADPP3, CS13,
CS14, CS16, CS17, CS18 and CS19 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006
— 2026, TRANS.1 and OVS.5 of the West Berkshire District Local Plan Saved
Policies 2007, the National Planning Policy Framework, and the Wildlife and
Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) should it not be started within a reasonable
time.

Access Construction

3.

As a first development operation the western access at Tull Way shall be
constructed in accordance with the approved drawing 3189-ATR-03 Rev E
received on 23 August 2016. The access at the site shall not be brought into use
for construction until give way markings have been implemented across the
entire access for the temporarily widened access during construction.

Reason: In the interest of road safety. This condition is imposed in accordance
with the National Planning Policy Framework 2012 and Policy CS13 of the West
Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026.

Construction Method Statement

4.

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved revised
Technical Note and the revised Construction Method Statement received on 20
January 2017. These documents provide for:

The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors;

Loading and unloading of plant and materials;

Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development;
The erection and maintenance of security hoarding;

Wheel washing facilities;

Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction.

Reason: To safeguard the amenity of adjoining land uses and occupiers and in
the interests of highway safety. This condition is imposed in accordance with the
National Planning Policy Framework 2012, Policies CS5 and CS13 of the West
Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026, Policy TRANS.1 of the West Berkshire

Page 13



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 22 FEBRUARY 2017 - MINUTES

District Local Plan Saved Policies 2007.

Materials

5.

Unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, the
materials to be used in the development hereby permitted shall be as specified
on the plans and supporting documents unless otherwise agreed in writing with
the Local Planning Authority. The headwall and wingwall concrete finish shall be
as per drawing 3189-SD-101 Rev G received on 20 January 2017. The bund
shall be constructed in accordance with the details submitted within documents:
Geotechnical Interpretative Report by Geo Environmental Services received on
20 November 2015; Geotechnical Lab Test Results Summary, documents
GE10924-App6-1, GE10924 EWKSPEC and email received on 19 April 2016.

Reason: To ensure that the materials respond to local character and do not
impact features of special interest for which the River Kennet Site of Special
Scientific Interest is notified. This condition is imposed in accordance with the
National Planning Policy Framework 2012, Policies CS14, CS17, and CS 19 of
the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026, and the Wildlife and Countryside
Act 1981 (as amended).

Set Back of Gates

6.

Any gates to be provided at accesses where vehicles will enter or leave the site,
shall open away from the adjoining highway and be set back a distance of at
least five metres from the edge of the highway.

Reason: In the interest of road safety and to ensure that vehicles can be driven
off the highway before the gates are opened. This condition is imposed in
accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework 2012 and Policy CS13
of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026.

Visibility Splays

7.

The use shall not commence until the visibility splays at both accesses on Tull
Way have been provided in accordance with drawing number 3189-GA-100 Rev
G received on 20 January 2017. The land within these visibility splays shall
thereafter be kept free of all obstructions to visibility over a height of one metre
above the carriageway level.

Reason: In the interests of road safety. This condition is imposed in accordance
with the National Planning Policy Framework 2012 and Policy CS13 of the West
Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026.

Parking Provision

8.

The vehicle parking and turning spaces shown on approved drawing number
3189-GA-100 Rev G received on 20 January 2017 shall be provided within four
weeks of the bund becoming operational. The parking and turning space shall
thereafter be kept available for parking at all times.

Reason: To ensure the development is provided with adequate parking facilities,

Page 14



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 22 FEBRUARY 2017 - MINUTES

in order to reduce the likelihood of roadside parking that would adversely affect
road safety and the flow of traffic. This condition is imposed in accordance with
the National Planning Policy Framework 2012, Policy CS13 of the West
Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026 and Policy TRANS1 of the West Berkshire
District Local Plan Saved Policies 2007.

Landscaping

9.

The hard and soft landscaping as detailed on drawing number
WBC/118/SK1/ReVE received on 11 July 2016 shall be implemented in full within
the first planting season following the completion of the development. Any trees,
shrubs or plants that die or become seriously damaged within five years of the
completion of the development shall be replaced in the next planting season by
plants of the same size and species.

Reason: To ensure the implementation of a satisfactory scheme of landscaping
and enhance the biodiversity of the area. This condition is imposed in
accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework 2012 and Policies
CS14, CS17 and CS19 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026.

Vegetation removal

10. No vegetation to be removed during the bird nesting season (1t March — 30t

September) unless a report has been submitted and approved by the Local
Planning Authority that shows there are no breeding birds present. Vegetation
removal will be undertaken within 5 days of such approval.

Reason: To ensure the protection of species protected by law and to accord with
Policy CS17 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026 and the National
Planning Policy Framework 2012.

No Steep Sided Holes

11.

During the construction period no steep sided holes will be left over night without
either being covered or having a means of escape such as the insertion of a
scaffold plank in the hole.

Reason: To ensure the protection of species protected by law and to accord with
Policy CS17 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026 and the National
Planning Policy Framework 2012.

Sheep Netting and Badger Gate

12. The badger gate identified on drawings 3189-GA-100-H, 3189-GA-01-H and

81561-LD51-004 received on 17 February 2017 shall be installed next to the
footpath on the line of the badger run prior to the completion and first use of the
development hereby approved. No sheep netting shall be attached to site fencing
until the badger gate has been installed.

Reason: To ensure the protection of species protected by law and to accord with

Policy CS17 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026 and the National
Planning Policy Framework 2012.

Page 15



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 22 FEBRUARY 2017 - MINUTES

Boundary treatments

13. No operation of the development shall take place until the boundary treatments

shown on drawing number WBC/118/SK1/RevE received on 11 July 2016 and
3189-RP-01 Rev G received on 2 December 2015 have been implemented in
full.

Reason: To ensure that the boundary treatments are constructed in a timely
manner following completion of the development. This condition is imposed in
accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework 2012 and Policies
CS14 and CS19 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026.

Archaeological Watching Brief

14. The development shall be constructed in accordance with the Archaeological

Watching Brief produced by Cotswold Archaeology and received on 22 February
2016.

Reason: To ensure that any significant archaeological remains that are found
are adequately recorded. This condition is imposed in accordance with the
National Planning Policy Framework 2012 and Policies ADPP2, ADPP3 and
CS14 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026.

50. Appeal Decisions relating to Western Area Planning Committee

Members noted the outcome of appeal decisions relating to the Western Area.

(The meeting commenced at 6.30 pm and closed at 7.45 pm)

CHAIRMAN

Date of Signature ...

Page 16



Agenda Item 4.(1)

Item Application No. 8/13 Week Date Proposal, Location and Applicant
No and Parish

(1) 16/02529/0OUTD 08.11.2016 Outline application for change of use of part of
existing agricultural field to residential and the

Cold Ash Parish erection of 5 no. detached dwelling houses
Council with ancillary garages, access, parking,

landscaping and associated works. Matters to
be considered - Access and Layout.

The Trustee Of F W New Deceased

Land Adjacent To Summerfield, The Ridge,
Cold Ash

To view the plans and drawings relating to this application click the following link:
http://planning.westberks.gov.uk/rpp/index.asp?caseref=16/02529/0UTD

Recommendation Summary: The Head of Planning and Countryside be authorised to
APPROVE the application as submitted.

Ward Member: Councillor Garth Simpson

Reason for Committee More than 10 letters of objection
determination:

Committee Site Visit: 9t March 2017
Contact Officer Details
Name: Mrs Sharon Brentnall
Job Title: Senior Planning Officer
Tel No: (01635) 519111
E-mail Address: Sharon.brentnall@westberks.gov.uk
West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 15 March 2017

Page 17


http://planning.westberks.gov.uk/rpp/index.asp?caseref=16/02529/OUTD
mailto:Sharon.brentnall@westberks.gov.uk

1. Site History

e 91/40126/ADD - New house — Refused 18.11.1991 — Dismissed at Appeal 18.03.1992

2. Publicity of Application

Site Notice Expired: 11.11.2016
Neighbour Notification Expired: 27.10.2016

3. Consultations and Representations

Cold Ash Parish Council

Objection
Comments:

1. With regard to access, there is totally insufficient
information regarding visibility splays & sightlines to enable
any constructive comment to be made at this stage,
particularly on this extremely busy road.

2. With regard to layout, Plot 1 is overbearing on neighbouring
property — Summerfield

3. Although not a matter for this application, the proposed
plans indicate dwellings to be too high, at 2 to 2.5 storeys,
in comparison to adjacent roof lines, and, as such, the
proposed plans are misleading.

4. We believe this application to be premature - before the
Inspector has approved the DPD

Bucklebury Parish Council

Objection
Comments:
e Bucklebury Parish Council objects to this application on
the grounds that it is currently outside of the Cold Ash
settlement boundary and is agricultural land.

o The Ridge at this location becomes incredibly
congested at school drop off and collection times. Cars
are frequently parked on the verge of The Ridge
adjacent to the land proposed for these houses.
Additional drives at this point will cause displacement of
cars and increased danger.

Thatcham Town Council

No Objection - subject to compliance with Core Strategy and
proposed DPD.

Waste Management

No objection
Comments:

e The application raises no concerns with regard to the
storage and collection of refuse and recycling. All of the
proposed houses have private amenity space and a
curtilage on the public highway.

Planning Policy

No objection
Comments summarised:
¢ As the site is allocated for approximately 5 dwellings in the
Housing Site Allocations DPD the principle of development
on the site is considered to be acceptable in policy terms.
The application, however, does not yet meet all the

West Berkshire Council

Western Area Planning Committee 15 March 2017
Page 1




requirements of policy HSA7 of the HSA DPD, in particular
with regard to the provision of a footway. As the DPD is well
progressed it carries significant weight in the decision
making process.

Case Officer Note:- Following further investigations in regard to the
provision of a footway, it was determined that this could not be
undertaken without the removal of the hedgerow (see details in
report). It is now no longer considered appropriate that the footway
is provided and the policy is to be amended in this regard.

Highways

No Objection subjection to conditions and informatives following
amended plans

Response received 25.10.2016:
ACCESSES

o Each of the proposed accesses must achieve visibility
splays of 2.4 metres x 43 metres clear above a height of 0.6
metres shown to the nearside carriageway edge.

¢ | could not see any plans detailing visibility splays. Has this
been provided? This must be submitted at this stage.

e Each of the accesses must be surfaced with a bonded
material for a minimum of 3 metres, preferably 5 metres,
back from the edge of the carriageway to avoid the
migration of loose material onto the carriageway.

TRAFFIC GENERATION

o The number of bedrooms within each dwelling has not been
specified. On the assumption that these will have 4+
bedrooms, each dwelling could generate around 8 vehicles
movements per day. The site could generate around 40
new daily vehicle movements.

¢ Inthe AM and PM peaks this could be an additional 3
movements overall.

e This increase would be too low to substantiate an objection
on.

CAR PARKING AND CYCLE STORAGE

e The following driveway car parking provision must be made
in this location:

e 1 bed houses — 1.5 spaces,
e 2 bed houses — 2 spaces,
e 3 bed houses — 2.5 spaces,
e 4 bed houses — 3 spaces.

¢ On site turning must also be provided to ensure vehicles
enter and exit the highway in forward gear. The above has
been provided on the depicted site layout.

West Berkshire Council

Western Area Planning Committee 15 March 2017
Page 19




o This above provision must not include garages but, where
proposed, these can be utilised for cycle storage.
Alternatively, sheds can be provided within the rear gardens
for this.

Case Officer Note:- Following the submission of additional
information and plans a further response was received:
04.11.2016:
¢ this amended plan is now acceptable. The highway
recommendation is for condition approval.

Ecology

No objection - subject to conditions

Comments:

e content that the phase 1 by PV Ecology (14/09/2016) is
sufficient. This concluded that a phase 2 assessment was
needed for Bats (para 1.5), Reptiles (para 1.6) and
important hedgerow (para 1.7).

e The Phase 2 survey by PV Ecology () is also sufficient, if
permission is likely to be granted it should be conditioned to
include the mitigation measures set out in chapter 6 of the
report.

e Namely — restriction on external lighting (as per 6.1), new
boundary hedgerow (appendix K) using native species (as
per appendix J) and the reptile mitigation strategy as
outlined in (appendix K).

No other consultation
responses received

Representations.

22 no. of letters of objection received.

Comments summarised as follows:
o traffic impact — particularly in relation to school

poor access

busy road

impact on hedgerows,

impact on street scene

use of farmland

loss of view,

loss of light and privacy

landscape impact.

no need for more housing,

application is premature,

does not respect the character of the area,

increase in accidents likely,

impact on local wildlife,

urbanisation of the area.

scale of buildings

not affordable dwellings and of not benefit to local

community

¢ last open green spaces on the south side of the Ridge and
one of the few green open spaces within the village.

o whether the application is valid without scale being
determined.

West Berkshire Council

Western Area Planning Committee 15 March 2017
Page 2




use of floor area figures on the submitted plans
topography and survey

insufficient gaps between dwellings

does not comply with HSA7

impact on Summerfield and Ridge End Barn
poor layout/siting

no visibility splay information

proximity to Iron Age Hill Fort

4, Policy Considerations

4.1 The statutory development plan comprises the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006- 2026
(WBCS) and the saved policies in the West Berkshire District Local Plan 1991-2006 (Saved
Policies 2007) (WBDLP).

4.2 Other material considerations include government guidance, in particular:
e The National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012) (NPPF)
¢ National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)

4.3 The following policies from the West Berkshire Core Strategy are relevant to this
application:

Area Delivery Plan Policy 1: Spatial Strategy

Area Delivery Plan Policy 5: North Wessex Downs AONB

CS 1: Delivering new homes and retaining the housing stock

CS 4: Housing Type and Mix

CS 5: Infrastructure requirements and delivery

CS 13: Transport

CS 14: Design Principles

CS 15: Sustainable Construction and Energy Efficiency

CS 16: Flooding

CS 17: Biodiversity and Geodiversity

CS 19: Historic Environment and Landscape Character

4.4 The proposed Housing Site Allocations Development Plan Document (HSA DPD), will form
part of the Local Plan and contains proposed housing and parking standards policies which
would replace those of the Local Plan Saved Policies. Significant weight must be given to
these policies for which the anticipated adoption date will be late Spring 2017. The following
policies are relevant to this application:

o GS1: General site policy

e HSAT: St Gabriel's Farm, The Ridge, Cold Ash

e C1: Location of new housing in the countryside
e C3: Design of housing in the countryside

e P1: Residential parking for new development

4.5 Paragraph 215 of the NPPF advises that due weight should be given to relevant policies in
existing plans according to their degree of consistency with the framework. Some saved
policies from the WBDLP have not been replaced by policies contained within the WBCS
and are therefore relevant to this application:

e OVS.5: Environmental Nuisance and Pollution Control

e OVS.6: Noise Pollution

e HSG.1: The Identification of Settlements for Planning Purposes
e TRANS.1: Meeting the Transport Needs of New Development

West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 15 March 2017
Page 21




4.6

5.1

5.2

5.3

54

5.5

6.0

6.1.
6.2.
6.3.
6.4.
6.5.
6.6.
6.7.
6.8.

In addition, the following locally adopted policy documents are relevant to this application:

e Supplementary Planning Document Quality Design (June 2006)
e Part 1 Achieving Quality Design
o Part 2 Residential Development

e Planning Obligations SPD (December 2014)

e Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule, Adopted March 2014 — Effective
from 1st April 2015.

Description of Development

This application seeks outline planning permission for the change of use of part of an
existing agricultural field at The Ridge, Cold Ash to residential and the erection of 5 no.
detached dwelling houses with ancillary garages, access, parking, landscaping and
associated works. The matters to be considered under this application relate to access and
layout with the remaining to be considered under a separate Reserved Matters application.

The site is located adjacent to, but outside the current settlement boundary for Cold Ash. It
has however been allocated for 5 dwellings in the Council’s Housing Site Allocations
Development Plan Document (HSA DPD). It is further proposed that the settlement
boundary is extended to include the site. The site is currently part of a larger open
agricultural field forming a gap between the existing settlement to the west and the farm
buildings to the east. The site is bounded by a mature hedgerow, separating the site from
the road known as The Ridge to the north, with further residential development beyond.
There is a mix of residential development in this area; whilst no particular style prevails, the
dwellings are predominantly detached properties set in large plots with generous gaps
between the buildings.

The submitted layout plan shows details of the size of the buildings, landscaping and other
matters which are considered illustrative at this stage. The plans shows 5 detached
dwellings situated within good size plots, which reflects a continuation of adjacent
properties to the west. The site faces onto and is accessed via The Ridge, with planting
(illustrative at this stage) shown along the boundary with the agricultural land to the rear
(south).

Proposed house 1 will have a separate driveway, with the remaining four dwellings sharing
two further accesses onto The Ridge, which will lead to individual driveways, garages and
parking areas for each property. The layout plan shows each dwelling being capable of
accommodating 3 no. car parking spaces in addition to garages and associated turning
space.

Additional plans have been received during the course of the application to confirm that
sufficient visibility splays can be achieved from each access point.

Consideration of the application.
The main issues for consideration in the determination of this application are:

The principle of the development

The impact on the character of the area including the North Wessex AONB
Amenity issues

Highway impact

Drainage and Flooding

Ecology

Community infrastructure Levy

The assessment of sustainable development

West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 15 March 2017

Page 2



6.1 The Principle of Development.

6.1.1 The NPPF takes the development plan as the starting point for all decision making, and
planning law requires that applications for planning permission must be determined in
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.
The current development plan for West Berkshire comprises the West Berkshire Core
Strategy (adopted 2012) and the Saved Policies of the West Berkshire District Local Plan
1991-2006.

Compliance with Development Plan and Emerging Policies

6.1.2 Policy CS1 of the WBCS attracts full weight as a development plan policy adopted post-
NPPF. It states that new homes will be located in accordance with the district settlement
hierarchy, and primarily developed on suitable previously developed land, and other
suitable land, within settlement boundaries. Whilst Policy ADPP1 of the WBCS promotes
the redevelopment of brownfield land, the Core Strategy acknowledges in Policy CS1 that
undeveloped land will need to be allocated to maintain housing supply.

6.1.3 According to the area delivery plan policies of the WBCS, allocations in the spatial areas
will be made adjacent to existing settlement boundaries which will be re-drawn through the
Housing Site Allocation DPD (HSA DPD). Policies ADPP1 and ADPP5 provide the spatial
strategy for the AONB within West Berkshire. Together with Policy CS1 they are guiding the
allocation of housing sites across the district outside the existing settlement boundaries
through the HSA DPD.

6.1.4 The selection and allocation of sites in the Housing Site Allocations DPD has been based
on evidence, technical assessments, the SA/SEA and the outcomes of public consultation.
The objective of the DPD is to allocate the most sustainable non-strategic sites based on
the technical evidence and the SA/SEA and in accordance with the housing distribution as
set out in the spatial strategy of the Core Strategy.

6.1.5 Therefore although the site is shown as adjacent to the settlement boundary under extant
Policy HSG.1 of the WBDLP, it is shortly to be replaced by Policy C1 (location of new
housing in the countryside) of the HSA DPD. This policy will provide a presumption in
favour of development within the redrawn settlement boundary of Cold Ash. At this
advanced stage in the plan making process, Policy C1 is a material consideration, which
now attracts substantial weight.

6.1.6 Policy GS1 of the HSA DPD is a general site policy applicable to all allocations. It seeks to
ensure comprehensive developments and several requirements which are generally
applicable to all sites. The proposed development complies with this policy, or is capable of
doing so by condition.

6.1.7 Policy HSA7 of the HSADPD is the site specific policy for the application site. A full
assessment of the policy criteria below will be provided in the relevant sections of the
report, however the proposal is considered to be in accordance with the details of the
policy. The full policy is set out below:

‘The site has a developable area of approximately 0.4 hectares and will be delivered in
accordance with the following parameters:

e The provision of approximately 5 individually designed dwellings to be delivered at a
low density in keeping with the surrounding area. The scheme will reflect the existing
settlement pattern and take the form of a linear development fronting The Ridge.

e Individual accesses will be provided from The Ridge in keeping with the local pattern.

e The scheme will be developed in accordance with the Landscape Capacity
Assessment (2015) and will include:

West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 15 March 2017
Page 23



6.2

6.2.1

6.2.2

6.2.3

6.2.4

e Built development confined to the higher ground along the road only.

e A gap in the built form to allow views through the development to the open
landscape to the south.

e The retention of the front boundary hedgerow treatment.

e The provision of a soft edge to the southern boundary of the site with tree planting.

e The development design and layout will be further informed by a full detailed
Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment (LVIA).

o Where possible, the provision of footways to link the site with existing footways fronting
St Finian’s School.

e The scheme will be informed by an extended phase 1 habitat survey with further
detailed surveys arising from that as necessary.

e The scheme will be informed by a phase 1 contamination report with further detailed
reports arising from that as necessary.

e The scheme will be informed by a flood risk assessment which will include appropriate
flood mitigation measures, including SuDS required

Prematurity
According to the Planning Practice Guidance, in the context of the NPPF and in particular

the presumption in favour of sustainable development, arguments that an application is
premature are unlikely to justify a refusal of planning permission other than where it is clear
that the adverse impacts of granting permission would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits, taking the policies in the NPPF and any other material
considerations into account.

Conclusion

The emerging HSA DPD now attracts substantial weight, and the proposed allocation of the
site weighs heavily in favour of the proposed development. Having considered the above
guidance on weight and prematurity in relation to the emerging HSA DPD, the principle of
development is acceptable.

The Impact on the Character of the area including The North Wessex AONB

Policy CS14 of the WBCS states that new development must demonstrate high quality and
sustainable design that respects and enhances the character and appearance of the area.
The site also is situated within the North Wessex AONB where the sensitive nature of the
landscape and special qualities of the area are conserved under Policy ADPP5.

The Council has adopted a Supplementary Planning Document series entitled Quality
Design (SPDQD). Part 1 of SPDQD provides design guidance including key urban design
principles. Part 2 of SPDQD provides detailed design guidance on residential development.
Part 3 of SPDQD provides a residential character framework for the prevailing residential
developments in the district.

The development is considered to accord with HSA DPD policy HSA 7 in that the built form
is to be sited on the higher ground, which continues the existing roadside ribbon of
development. The proposed illustrative layout is considered to respond to the pattern of
development within the area. The large plot sizes are also considered appropriate to the
form of development proposed. The siting of 5 detached dwellings as shown on the
illustrative proposal highlights the capability of the development to allow for sufficient gaps
in the built form to allow views through the development to the open landscape to the south.

The southern boundary of the site lies adjacent to open fields and Policy HSA7 requires the
provision of a soft edge to the southern boundary of the site with tree planting. The
illustrative site plan shows notational tree planting along this boundary and highlights the
capability of the site to accommodate vegetation in line with the criteria of the policy.

West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 15 March 2017

Page 2



6.2.4

6.2.5

6.2.6

6.2.7

6.2.8

6.3

6.3.1

6.3.2

Following discussions throughout the course of the application, the issue of the retention of
the front boundary hedgerow has been considered at length. The existing hedgerow is
considered to be an important feature within the verdant street scene and key to softening
the transition between the countryside and the built form within the village. The proposed
three access points are considered preferable to five individual driveways as it will enable
minimal intervention in this regard. The provision of required visibility splays requires limited
trimming of the existing hedgerow to ensure highway safety. The provision of a footway in
this location has also been considered, however this has been discounted due to the impact
and potential loss of the hedgerow as a result (discussed in further detail below).

The proposals have been informed by a full detailed Landscape and Visual Impact
Assessment (LVIA) to accompany the application which states ‘Views towards the site from
the very fringes of the AONB are partially screened by the existing 2.5m high hedgerow
along the frontage. From the wider AONB, behind the road frontage development views are
heavily screened by the existing housing’. Furthermore it stated that ‘no views from the
publicly accessible areas within the visual envelope from the AONB, therefore the proposed
development would have very limited effects on the North Wessex Downs AONB’. It is
considered that the proposals would be viewed in the context of the existing ribbon of
development along The Ridge and whilst will represent a change in character from the
current agricultural land, such change will be in keeping with the nature of surrounding
development.

The LVIA also recommended that the mature hedgerows should be retained and reinforced
where possible, with new native planting to the south of the proposed gardens and the
development should enable views towards the countryside beyond. The boundary
treatments and landscaping of the site are considerations for a subsequent reserved
matters application for landscaping. Boundary treatments which are in keeping with the
character of the area, and safeguard neighbouring amenity, will be sought at that stage. It is
therefore considered that subject to conditions and the remaining Reserved Matters, the
proposal would not harm the views of the North Wessex Downs AONB in these regards.

One further recommendation of the submitted LVIA stated that ‘The proposed dwellings
should be limited to 2.5 storeys in height’. Scale is an issue that would need to be
examined at the reserved matters stage, although it is recommended that the proposed
dwellings are in keeping with the scale of adjacent dwellings and taller buildings would not
be appropriate. The submitted plans give no indication of scale, although a gross external
floorspace is notionally shown on the layout plan. The notional figures have not been taken
into consideration nor accepted as part of this application.

Therefore it is considered that the quality of the overall internal site layout appears to
facilitate a scheme which, with appropriate attention to detail, could ensure a high quality
public realm and compliance with policy HSA7 and GS1, CS14 and the Quality Design
SPD.

Amenity

Securing a good standard of amenity for all existing and future occupants of land and
buildings is one of the core planning principles of the NPPF. Policy CS14 of the WBCS
states that new development must make a positive contribution to the quality of life in West
Berkshire. The West Berkshire Quality Design SPD and the West Berkshire House
Extensions SPG provide guidance on the impacts of development on neighbouring living
conditions.

The impact on neighbouring amenity is an issue that would need to be examined further at
the reserved matters stage. However, at outline stage it is considered that the layout does
not raise any significant concerns in this respect, particularly because of the separation

West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 15 March 2017

Page 25



6.3.3

6.4

6.4.1

6.4.2

distances between the indicative buildings and neighbouring properties and the intervening
landscaping along the boundaries of the site.

According to the Quality Design SPD, the Council considers it essential for the living
conditions of future residents that suitable outdoor amenity space is provided in most new
residential development. It is the quality of outdoor space that matters most, but the SPD
provides minimum size guidelines. Although this is a matter that would need to be
assessed at reserved matters stage; it is clear at this outline stage that good quality outdoor
amenity space could be provided.

Highway Impact

Policy CS13 states that development generating a transport impact will be required to;
reduce the need to travel, improve and promote opportunities for healthy and safe travel,
mitigate the impact on the local transport network and the strategic road network, and
prepare transport assessments to support planning proposals in accordance with national
guidance.

Policy P1 of the emerging HSA DPD sets out the parking standards for new residential
development. This site is in the parking zone 3, where the policy states that a minimum of
2.5 spaces for 3 bed dwellings and 3 spaces for 4 bed dwellings is required. The total
proposed spaces will be determined at the reserved matters stage, but from the illustrative
block plan, sufficient space is available for the parking and turning of vehicles on site.

6.4.3 The NPPF recognises that transport policies have an important role to play in facilitating

6.4.4

6.4.5

6.5

6.5.1

sustainable development. It states that transport assessments must; ensure safe and
suitable access to the site can be achieved for all people, and improvements can be
undertaken within the transport network that cost effectively limits the significant impacts of
the development. As part of Policy HSA7, a footway was initially required along the
frontage of the site. During the course of the application however, it has transpired that the
provision of this footway would require the removal of much if not all of the hedgerow along
the front of the site. The Council’s Tree Officer considers this to be an important hedgerow
and it is also understood to provide ecological benefits. The loss of the hedgerow is
therefore not considered acceptable and the requirement for the provision of the footway
has been removed. It is also considered that in these circumstances where there is no
existing adjacent footway, the potential provision of a footway along the site, would serve
little highway safety value at present.

Cycle and refuse storage is expected with new development in accordance with the Quality
Design SPD, and the Council’'s Highways and Waste officer's have provided comments and
conditions in relation to the illustrative layout provided however, these are issues to be
examined at the reserved matters stage and there is no indication at the outline stage that
these matters could not be adequately addressed.

The Council’'s Highways Officer has reviewed the proposed plans raising no objections.
Adequate visibility and access is considered available and demonstrated in the submitted
plans. It is therefore considered that the proposed development will comply with the criteria
contained within Policy CS13 of the WBCS, Policy P1 of the HSA DPD, and the NPPF.

Flood risk and Drainage

The NPPF states that inappropriate development in areas at risk of flooding should be
avoided by directing development away from areas at highest risk. Policy CS16 of the
WBCS strictly applies a sequential approach across the district. The application site is
located in the Environment Agency’s Flood Zone 1, which has the lowest probability of
fluvial flooding. The site is therefore suitable for residential development in terms of flood
risk. The site is also not considered at risk from surface or groundwater flooding.

West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 15 March 2017

Page 2



6.5.2

6.5.3

6.5.4

Policy CS16 of the WBCS states that on all development sites, surface water will be
managed in a sustainable manner through the implementation of Sustainable Drainage
Methods (SuDS). The National Planning Policy Guidance (NPPG) is more specific; it
advises that whether a sustainable drainage system should be considered will depend on
the proposed development and its location, for example whether there are concerns about
flooding. Sustainable drainage systems may not be practicable for some forms of
development. New development should only be considered appropriate in areas at risk of
flooding if priority has been given to the use of sustainable drainage systems. Additionally,
and more widely, when considering development, sustainable drainage systems should be
provided unless demonstrated to be inappropriate.

Sustainable drainage systems are considered necessary for this development. Generally,
the aim should be to discharge surface run off as high up the following hierarchy of
drainage options as reasonably practicable:

(a) into the ground (infiltration);

(b) to a surface water body;

(c) to a surface water sewer, highway drain, or another drainage system;

(d) to a combined sewer.

It is clear from the submitted Flood Risk Assessment to accompany the application and the
illustrative layout that the site is capable of discharging surface run off into the ground via
infiltration and the foul water can be discharged into the sewer network. The drainage can
be dealt with by condition and in connection with the proposed landscaping scheme to be
considered at reserved matters stage.

6.6 Ecology

6.6.1

6.7

6.7.1

6.8

6.8.1

Policy CS17 of the WBCS states that biodiversity and geodiversity assets across West
Berkshire will be conserved and enhanced. Policy HSA 9 of the HSA DPD requires the
submission of an extended phase 1 habitat survey and resulting surveys as necessary. A
phase 1 Survey and Phase 2 Bat and Reptile Report have been submitted to accompany
the application. The Council ecologist has commented that the proposals are acceptable
subject to compliance with the reports, which can be secured by condition. Further
conditions in relation to the use of external lighting and planting schemes containing native
species are also considered essential to the conservation and enhancement of protected
species. It is therefore considered that the proposed development would comply with Policy
CS17 of the WBCS.

Community Infrastructure Levy

Under the Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule adopted by West Berkshire
Council and the government Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations the proposal is
liable for CIL. The CIL Charging Schedule sets out that the amount calculated is to be
determined under the AONB Residential Rate of £125 per m2. As this is an Outline
application, the final figure will be based on the floorspace details submitted at the
Reserved Matters stage

Presumption in favour of sustainable development

The NPPF has introduced a presumption in favour of sustainable development, which
paragraph 197 advises should be applied in assessing and determining development
proposals. The NPPF identifies three dimensions to sustainable development: economic,
social and environmental.

West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 15 March 2017

Page 27



6.8.2 Future residents would make a contribution to the local economy, and the development

7.

7.

7.2.

would provide employment in construction for a short period. The environmental
considerations have been assessed in terms of the impact on the character and
appearance of the area and the AONB, and neighbouring amenity and for the reasons
given above are considered acceptable. The development would bring social benefits in
terms of providing housing required to meet the needs of present and future generations.
As these have been found acceptable the development is considered to constitute
sustainable development.

CONCLUSION.

Having taken account of all the relevant policy considerations and the other material
considerations referred to above, it is considered the proposal is considered to be
acceptable and a conditional approval is justifiable for the following reasons.

The proposal will not unduly harm the character and appearance of the surrounding area
and the AONB, or neighbouring amenity, and there are no other material considerations
that indicate planning permission should otherwise be refused. It is recommended that the
application be approved.

8. RECOMMENDATION.

The Head of Planning and Countryside be authorised to APPROVE Planning Permission
subject to conditions:-

8.1

1.

Schedule of conditions

Reserved Matters

Details of the appearance, landscaping, and scale (hereinafter called 'the reserved matters')
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority no later than
the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this permission, and no building or
other operations shall start on site until the Reserved Matters have been approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the development shall be carried out in strict
accordance with the approved details and with the requirements of any conditions attached
to any approved reserved matters application. This condition shall apply irrespective of any
indications as to the reserved matters which have been given in the application hereby
approved.

Reason: To comply with Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as
amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004). The
application is not accompanied by sufficient details of the reserved matters to enable the
Local Planning Authority to give proper consideration to those matters and such
consideration is required to ensure that the development is in accordance with the
development plan.

Time limit

The development to which this permission relates shall be begun before the expiration of
five years from the date of this permission or before the expiration of two years from the
date of approval of the last of the approved matters to be approved, whichever is the later.

Reason: To comply with Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as
amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004).

Plans approved
The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with:

Site location plan 1686/P02

West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 15 March 2017

Page 2



Block Plan 1686/P01 rev C
Visibility Splay Plan  1686/P03 rev B — received via email 3.11.2016
Site survey

Associated Documents

Planning, Design and Access Statement, Sept 2016

Phase | Ecological Assessment, PV Ecology, April 2016

Phase Il Bat and Reptile Report, Issue 03, PV Ecology, Sept 2016 - received via email
6.10.2016

Landscape & visual impact assessment, April 2016

Flood Risk Assessment, Issue 3, Glanville, 6 Oct 2016, - received via email 6.10.2016

All received with the application 13.09.2016 unless otherwise specified.

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the submitted
details in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework 2012, policies ADPP1,
ADPP5, CS 13, CS 14, and CS 19 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026, policy
TRANS.1 of the West Berkshire District Local Plan Saved Policies 2007, Supplementary
Planning Document: Quality Design 2006, and HSA DPD Policy HSA7.

4. Hours of work (construction)
Demolition or construction works shall not take place outside the following hours:
7:30am to 6:00pm Mondays to Fridays;
8:30am to 1:00pm Saturdays;
nor at any time on Sundays or Bank Holidays.

Reason: To safeguard the living conditions of adjacent occupiers in accordance with Policy
CS14 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026.

5. Unforseen contamination
Should any unforeseen contamination be encountered during the development, the
developer shall inform the Local Planning Authority immediately in writing via a condition
discharge application. Any subsequent investigation/remedial/protective works deemed
necessary by the Local Planning Authority shall be carried out to agreed timescales and
approved by the Local Planning Authority in writing via a condition discharge application. If
no contamination is encountered during the development, a letter confirming this fact shall
be submitted to the Local Planning Authority upon completion of the development via a
condition discharge application.
This is in accordance with the NPPF, and Policies CS14 and CS16 of the West Berkshire
Core Strategy 2006 - 2026.

6. CONS1 - Construction method statement
No development shall take place until a Construction Method Statement has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. The statement shall provide
for:

) The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors

) Loading and unloading of plant and materials

) Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development

) The erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative displays and
facilities for public viewing

(e) Wheel washing facilities

(f) Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction

(g) A scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and construction

works

West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 15 March 2017
Page 29



Reason: To safeguard the amenity of adjoining land uses and occupiers and in the interests of
highway safety. This condition is imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy
Framework (March 2012), Policies CS5 and CS13 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-
2026), Policy TRANS 1 of the West Berkshire District Local Plan 1991-2006 (Saved Policies 2007).

7. HIGH7 - Surfacing of access (YHA15)

No development shall take place until details of the surfacing arrangements for the vehicular
access(es) to the highway have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. Such details shall ensure that bonded material is used across the entire width of the
access(es) for a distance of 3 metres measured back from the carriageway edge. Thereafter the
surfacing arrangements shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To avoid migration of loose material onto the highway in the interest of road safety. This
condition is imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012) and
Policy CS13 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026).

8. HIGH9 - Visibility splays before development (YHA21)

No development shall take place until visibility splays of 2.4 metres by 43 metres have been
provided at the access. The visibility splays shall, thereafter, be kept free of all obstructions to
visibility above a height of 0.6 metres above carriageway level.

Reason: In the interests of road safety. This condition is imposed in accordance with the National
Planning Policy Framework (March 2012) and Policy CS13 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy
(2006-2026).

9. HIGH11 - Vehicle parking provided to standards (YHA23)

No development shall take place until details of the vehicle parking and turning space/areas have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such details shall
show how the parking spaces are to be surfaced and marked out. No dwelling shall be occupied
until the vehicle parking and turning spaces/areas have been provided in accordance with the
approved details. The parking and/or turning space shall thereafter be kept available for parking
(of private motor cars and/or light goods vehicles) at all times.

Reason: To ensure the development is provided with adequate parking facilities in order to reduce
the likelihood of roadside parking which would adversely affect road safety and the flow of traffic.
This condition is imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (March
2012), Policy CS13 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026) and Policy TRANS1 of the
West Berkshire District Local Plan 1991-2006 (Saved Policies 2007).

10. HIGH16 - Access construction (plans required)

No development shall take place until details of all access(es) into the site have been submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. No dwelling shall be occupied until the
access has been constructed in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: In the interest of road safety. This condition is imposed in accordance with the National
Planning Policy Framework (March 2012) and Policy CS13 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy
(2006-2026).

1. HIGH20 - Cycle storage (YHA41)

No development shall take place until details of the cycle parking and storage space have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. No dwelling shall be
occupied until the cycle parking and storage space has been provided in accordance with the
approved details and retained for this purpose at all times.

Reason: To ensure that there is adequate and safe cycle storage space within the site. This
condition is imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012),

West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 15 March 2017
Page 3



Policy CS13 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026) and Policy TRANS1 of the West
Berkshire District Local Plan 1991-2006 (Saved Policies 2007).

12. Storage of refuse

No development shall take place until details of the provision for the storage of refuse and
recycling materials for the dwellings has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The dwellings shall not be occupied until the refuse and recycling facilities
have been provided in accordance with the approved details and shall be retained for this purpose
thereafter.

Reason: To ensure that there is adequate and safe refuse/recycling facilities within the site. This
condition is imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012),
Policies CS13 and CS14 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026), and Supplementary
Planning Document Quality Design (June 2006).

13. External lighting

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the external lighting
mitigation measures as set out in paragraph 6.1 of Phase Il Bat and Reptile Report, PV Ecology,
Sept 2016. Any proposed external lighting shall ensure that dark corridors for bats are retained
and thereafter the development shall incorporate and be undertaken in accordance with the
approved details.

Reason: To ensure the protection of protected species, which are subject to statutory protection
under European Legislation. This condition is imposed in accordance with the National Planning
Policy Framework (March 2012), Policy CS17 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026.

14. Ecology - new boundary hedgerow

No development shall take place until details of a new boundary hedgerow along the southern
boundary have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
new hedgerow shall be designed to create and enhance bat foraging and commuting habitat on
site using native species and retained in accordance with the recommendations as set out in
Appendix J of Phase |l Bat and Reptile Report, PV Ecology, Sept 2016.

Reason: To ensure the protection of protected species, which are subject to statutory protection
under European Legislation. This condition is imposed in accordance with the National Planning
Policy Framework (March 2012), Policy CS17 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026.

15. Reptile mitigation strategy

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the reptile mitigation
strategy as set out in paragraphs 6.4 to 6.12 and appendix K of Phase Il Bat and Reptile Report,
PV Ecology, Sept 2016 and shall be implemented in full and the measures shall thereafter be
retained.

Reason: To ensure the protection of protected species, which are subject to statutory protection
under European Legislation. This condition is imposed in accordance with the National Planning
Policy Framework (March 2012), Policy CS17 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026.

16. Removal of permitted development rights.

Irrespective of the provisions of the current Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 2015 (or any subsequent revision), no additions or extensions to the
dwellings shall be built or ancillary buildings or structures erected within the curtilages, unless
permission in writing has been granted by the Local Planning Authority on an application made for
the purpose.

West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 15 March 2017
Page 31



Reason: To prevent the over-development of the site and to safeguard the amenities of
neighbouring properties in accordance with Policies CS14, CS17, CS19 of the West Berkshire
Core Strategy 2006-2026 and HSA DPD Policy HSA?7.

Informatives:

1

This decision has been made in a positive way to foster the delivery of sustainable
development having regard to Development Plan policies and available guidance to
secure high quality appropriate development. In this application whilst there has been a
need to balance conflicting considerations, the local planning authority has worked
proactively with the applicant to secure and accept what is considered to be a
development which improves the economic, social and environmental conditions of the
area.

The development hereby approved results in a requirement to make payments to the
Council as part of the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) procedure. A Liability Notice
setting out further details, and including the amount of CIL payable will be sent out
separately from this Decision Notice. You are advised to read the Liability Notice and
ensure that a Commencement Notice is submitted to the authority prior to the
commencement of the development. Failure to submit the Commencement Notice will
result in the loss of any exemptions claimed, and the loss of any right to pay by
instalments, and additional costs to you in the form of surcharges. For further details see
the website at www.westberks.gov.uk/cil

HIl 1 Access construction

The Highways Manager, West Berkshire District Council, Highways & Transport, Council
Offices, Market Street, Newbury, RG14 5LD, telephone number 01635 — 519887, should
be contacted to agree the access construction details and to grant a licence before any
work is carried out within the highway. A formal application should be made, allowing at
least four (4) weeks’ notice, to obtain details of underground services on the applicant’s
behalf.

HI 3 Damage to footways, cycleways and verges

The attention of the applicant is drawn to the Berkshire Act, 1986, Part I, Clause 9, which
enables the Highway Authority to recover the costs of repairing damage to the footway,
cycleway or grass verge, arising during building operations.

HI 4 Damage to the carriageway

The attention of the applicant is drawn to the Highways Act, 1980, which enables the
Highway Authority to recover expenses due to extraordinary traffic.

HI 8 Excavation in close proximity to the highway

In order to protect the stability of the highway it is advised that no excavation be carried
out within 15 metres of a public highway without the written approval of the Highway
Authority.

H 100 Developer Coordination Requirements

"Any works/events carried out either by, or at the behest of, the developer, whether they
are located on, or affecting a prospectively maintainable highway, as defined under
Section 87 of the New Roads and Street Works Act 1991, or on or affecting the public
highway, shall be coordinated under the requirements of the New Roads and Street

West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 15 March 2017

Page 3



Works Act 1991 and the Traffic management Act 2004 and licensed accordingly in order
to secure the expeditious movement of traffic by minimising disruption to users of the
highway network in West Berkshire.

Any such works or events commissioned by the developer and particularly those involving
the connection of any utility to the site, shall be coordinated by them in liaison with West
Berkshire Council's Street Works Section, (telephone 01635 519169/519234). This must
take place at least one month in advance of the works and particularly to ensure that
statutory undertaker connections/supplies to the site are coordinated to take place
wherever possible at the same time.

Reason: In order to minimise disruption to road users, be they pedestrians or vehicular
traffic, under the requirements of the New Roads and Street Works Act 1991 and the
Traffic Management Act 2004. In order to satisfy the licensing requirements of the
Highways Act 1980."

DC

West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 15 March 2017
Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 34



16/02529

Land Adjacent to Summerfield, The Ridge, Cold Ash

“31 «'\\

Malthouse

Cul\ev_laJ

Little Malthouse
Copse
«Collects

“Roundhil
Copse 1'7,

¥ ¥ ¥

d

N\

Héiiy Wood

W W Sy v

%/ 133m

A

Ramsbury.
: Gorner
7 A

~0

@ ve\/‘ar'djt‘ =Y

A Grar
1.9?&\\\ s

i
S

* Ramsbury \
Corner™

. Wood

RPN

Robin's
Copse

Lawrence's
Copse
e

o
Grove Copse ”

A 2\Burden's Heatt

\Plantation

Ramsbury /..v ‘
Copse

Issues

| Copse "%

P cre e £
EN =
A -

~-fath a7

Dunston

Map Centre Coordinates : Scale: 1:10027
Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission Organisation West Berkshire Council
of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown
Copyright 2003. Department
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Comments
Date 03 March 2017

Scale 1:10028
m 130 260 390 520 SLA Number 0100024151

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 36



Bﬁﬁ%e

Plans and drawings relevant to reports submitted to

Western Area Planning Committee
15 March 2017 at 6.30pm

at the Council Chamber, Council Offices,
Market Street, Newbury

[to be read in conjunction with the main agenda]

Please note:
e All drawings are copied at A4 and consequently are not scalable

e Most relevant plans have been included — however, in some cases, it
may be necessary for the case officer to make a selection

e All drawings are available to view at www.westberks.gov.uk

e The application files will be available for half an hour before the meeting

Page 37



16/02529/0UTD
Land Adjacent To
Summerfield

The Ridge

Cold Ash

Page 38




¥8107 5691001
TO1 ¥19Y "SHOg AINGMON ‘POOY UIBE PIO Z
869 89 p6£10 7191

86 1SOS “SIUPH J9is3YdulM ‘PIeydwy ‘PROY 19js3ydulm Hnod 10usnseso ®

! o Asepunoq uonedidde ay
NOISIA Od oo o 0 . . punoq uonesi| NS

|

# AT 91, bny 31va

20d/989T :ON OMAEV ® 0STT:T ITVOS

uejd uonedO] AUS
ONIMYAd
aJ1ysyi9g 3som
‘ysv plod

‘abpry ayL
103royd

paseadaq M 4 JO Saa1snd] YL
N3O

e Bujuiwieyep Jo sesodind ayy Joj Buimesp siyy woyy ajeas AluQ

“Juasu09 uspum Jold Jnoypm
wioy Aue uj paonpoidai aq jou Aew pue ubisaq @ Buiuueld

UOISIA 01d Yim surewal Buimesp siyy Jo Jybukdoo sy @ >

“JOSNYOLY BU} JO JUBSUOD
Joud ay) noyym papiuuad aq [im Buimesp siy) woly uoieinsp
ON "P8}IY2IY 8y} 0} papode selouBdaIosIp (€ PUE B)is Uo

Hom B aiojeq 1P 2 05U Jsnu ~
ay] “Ajereipawiw 108)yoly 8y} o} papodal aq pjnoys sbuimesp

$JUB}NSU0D JBLj0 AUB PUE SI) Usamjeq selouedaiosip Auy ‘
*sesodind uononysuod
103 BuIMEIp S1) WOy 829S ou 0 -uoeoydde Buiuueld ~

/\

Page 39

o @ sreozo

QDOIHD | NMVID ‘SINIWONIWY | 31va | ATy




ZEKTZ000T JaqUINU 22UBD[T "PanIEsal SWBU 1Y
410z WBLAdoD umos) (9) ASaIns adueupio

qnuys pesodoig O

vo10r se910 101
415 ¥19Y "AINGMaN PoOY fouusy PIDA SIW 1s3m Z1 O
549 89¢ w1001
96 LSOS "SIUDH "J3|saYDUIM ‘PIaydWy ‘POOY JBISAYIUIM 'HNOD JoUASOID @
Y 1bs/ ¥9z/ wbsg vz Jbse0P/ wbsge 1bsg0p/ wbsge Jbsygy/ wbsgy | ybs/ v9z/ wbsg vz JOVHVO
4bsGeog / Wbszgz | 4bsgooe / Wbsggz | 4bsEO0E / WbseLZ | 4bsyzoe /wbsLgz | bsee6z / Wbsglz 3ISNOH 011 pasodoig Q
oeze'0/ wbspeel | oeLe'0/wbsozgl | oeze0/wbspzGl | 9ezy 0/ wbspoLL | 9eLE'0/ WbSO0SL vIdY obpoH paysiowsq
Uy'G6l / WS'6S Uy'S6L / WG'6S Uy'S6lL / WG'6SG HG'G61 / WI9'6S #5661 / WIO'6S Hld3a obpeH bunsixa WEG—_—_
UL'Z8 /WS Uo'e8 / Wy'ST WTY8 / WY'sT UTY8 / WY'sT Uo'Ye / WE'SZ | IOVLINOYS aBpoH pesodoid [
2 A3 9T Iudy :31va
S 14 € 4 3 107d
. . aN3o3aT
T0d/989T :ON OMA TV ® 00S:T :I1vOS
S10/d S :T NOILdO
ueid aus ue|d s
IONIMYYA
aa1ysyiog 1Isoam
ysv piod
‘abppy ayL R0 o
103rodd X ??orobo,??otw?oro%?ffoo eale
. uonebniw
ande;
R Hee
PRS0,
' ‘,P X

£ ST
-“ ‘ XK

pasessag MaN M 4 JO S321SnJL ayL
(IN3ITO

s GH O
e101d &

wbso0L'L
¢ 1071d

wbsoge’}
G 1071d
V39 wbszgz
G 3ISNOH

V39 wbsgge
¥ 3SNOH

wbspog'L
1 1071d

V3O wbse.z
€ 3SNOH

V39 wbsg/z
1 ISNOH

Page A0

N

uleg pu3 abpry

elsen

Umopsyooy

3081qJoN

Ajlo4 s ebbag

ponow ebpay wnos | oreoo | @

orento | @

panow o6pay uinog
srwso | v

@ paisile uoneoo] sesnop
enssiisid | orsoor
EIva | A3

SINIWONWY

“QAOIHD | NMVEA




Keyds Aupaisin-—

WEy X ¥ 16 B ¥ 10Id
Keyds Aunarsip

wey X ¥'Z 1€ 3 2 10ld
Aeyds Ayqisin

wey X 2 1) 10Id

a A3y 9190 =

£0d/989T ‘ON OM OV ® 00T:T 37

nusniog 1som
usv piod
oBpp oL
130N
aN3oat

Paseadaq MaN M 4 JO SRl UL

O

N

ano
g “
9.

uonebpw

wbspge)

¢ 107d
v39 wbszgz
S ASNOH

wbsozg‘)

V39 wbsggz
¥ ASNOH

V39O wbse/g
€ 3ISNOH

wbs0g*L
l 1071d

b)

V39O wbsg/z
L ISNOH

uleg pu3 abpry

i . analyoe 0} Yoeq
AQ sebpaH 910N
)
@/04 N N
S &
S O
NY & &
Se) '3 &
O
8y o S)
HUM & Q %/f 8@@
K 9
> £
7
\O\w\

UMOpS)‘OOH

Aeids Anqisin

Page 41

we'e



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 42



	Agenda
	2. Minutes
	4.(1) Application No. and Parish: 16/02529/OUTD - Land Adjacent To Summerfield, The Ridge, Cold Ash
	Map
	Plans


